Comment ID: 397 



A.4.4(b) and A.4.7

What items/prices will be utilized for the Government’s Total Evaluated Price for the initial award

of this contract? The RFP states "the proposed NTE prices will be evaluated in accordance with

the price model" and "The Government will evaluate the price for all standard and optional services

for all Seats/systems." Does this mean that the Total Evaluated Price that the Government will

utilize to compare offerors total prices will be the total for all entries/cells for the individual items in

the price model?



RESPONSE: Yes. 



ATTACHMENT A LIST OF ACRONYMS AND DEFINITIONS

  

Comment ID: 427 



The current definition of "downtime" states it is "the period of time between the time of failure and

the time that the system is returned to the Government fully operational." However, very often the

contractor is not immediately notified of the downtime and it may even take hours before the

contractor is notified of the failure. Yet the contractor is penalized for the additional time it may

have taken the end user to notify the contractor. We recommend the following definition for

downtime: "the period of time between the time the contractor is notified of the failure and the time

that the system is returned to the Government fully operational." (4)



RESPONSE: The definition of “downtime” will be modified in Amendment 2 to state that for desktop systems, where the contractor may not be cognizant of a system down until being notified by the end user, downtime is defined as recommended in this comment but that for all other systems (e.g. network) where it is felt that the contractor should be cognizant of a system down immediately, downtime is defined as it currently reads in the RFP.



C.5.5.1 ODIN-SUPPORTED HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE (TRIAGE

LEVEL 1)



Comment ID: 428 



Will products in the CSCC be purchased or leased? If the answer is both, please provide rules on

determining which CLINs are priced which way. (5) 



RESPONSE:  Products obtained from the CSCC will not be owned by the Government.  Please refer to the RFP, 1. Contract Terms and Conditions - Commercial Items, paragraph (n).  

 

C.5.7 CATALOG SERVICES 

 

Comment ID: 398 



RFP Paragraph C.5.7. and Attachment G. In which volume/tab does the government expect the

Catalog of Commercially-available products and services (CSCC) to be presented? 



RESPONSE:  Attachment G should be included in the Technical Proposal in Tab 9 without pricing information. 



E.2.3 COMMUNICATION SEATS/SERVICES 

 

Comment ID: 429 



The structure of the communication service categories does not parallel the desktop service

categories. There are no "maintenance only" service bands in the communications section. Does

this mean that the contractor will not be required to support existing equipment, only to provide

and support new equipment provided through this contract? (6) 



RESPONSE:  No.   For all service categories, the contractor is expected to support existing equipment. Please note however, desktop seats GP1-3 and SE1-3 are to be purchased for new as well as existing desktops if they are to have “full support” (which includes technology refresh and maintenance).  The MA seats are to purchased only when true “maintenance only” is desired.”



E.2.3.8 REMOTE COMMUNICATION SERVICE DESCRIPTION 

 

Comment ID: 379 



Is remote communication as defined in paragraph E.2.3.8, limited to the continental US? "



RESPONSE:  No.



E.3.1.2 ODIN APPLICATION SOFTWARE 

 

Comment ID: 418 



Please provide a listing of the software that is to be included with the referenced software suites by seat type and by agency and center standards?



We have attempted to access this information via the center bidder's libraries but have been unable to access a number of the libraries to obtain the data assuming that it resides there. We are therefore unable to determine seat prices. This is a critical path item in developing our response.



RESPONSE: Attachment L lists the known software in use at Centers today requiring Triage Level 1 or 2 support.”  The Government believes this information, in conjunction with the information available on the ODIN web site through the Center questionnaires and participation surveys is adequate to develop a response.  Problems related to accessing information in the Center offerors’ libraries should be referred to the respective Center POC  listed in A.3.1.1.  For all questions not related to data access, please submit your questions to the RFP Comment Collector.



E.3.1.11 INTEGRATED CUSTOMER SUPPORT/HELP DESK 

 

Comment ID: 399 



E.3.1.11: The service levels described for the customer support/help desk include basic, regular, and enhanced. The pricing model includes an additional category for an operational service level. If the operational service level is to be priced, please provide typical service characteristics in Attachment E. 



RESPONSE:  The operational service level in the Price Model is an error.  Please ignore for now and this will be corrected if a future version of the Price Model is released.



E.3.3.1 PHONE SERVICE 

 

Comment ID: 430 



Please provide additional configuration information for the phone service service category. In order to guarantee an acceptable level of performance, we recommend that the Government specify the minimum and maximum number of phone lines per trunk and the number of trunks per Center. (7) 



RESPONSE:  This is already determined by the environment that exists at each Center today, and varies from Center to Center.



F.1 METRICS MEASUREMENT



Comment ID: 431 



Please consider lowering the performance metrics to a level consistent with standard commercial practice which would use a metric such as 95% of all seats shall be available 98% of the time (also reference to F.1.1).  



RESPONSE:  The Government believes the metrics as defined are an accurate representation of NASA’s overall requirements. 



Comment ID: 432 



In addition to the very high performance metric, the Government's specification is unusual in that data must be tracked for each desktop on a daily basis. While this is technically feasible, the administrative effort necessary to monitor and collect availability data every day for every machine for the calculation of daily downtime credits would not be cost-effective. As implied in the 95% /98% performance metric proposed above, standard commercial practice is to track the performance metric for the installed base as a whole, not for individual machines. (9)



RESPONSE:  The Government believes downtime for every machine can be tracked as a part of a robust problem tracking system.  With the level of technology available today, the Government does not believe this presents an overly burdensome administrative effort.



Comment ID: 400



RFP ATTACHMENT G, CATALOG OF SERVICES AND COMMERCIAL

COMPONENTS, identifies a requirement to provide individual prices for each of three categories for the various equipment and software items included in the catalog. The Exhibit 1 spreadsheets, in sheet CSCC, appears to allow only one price (i.e., GSA or commercial price) per item, plus an applicable, single discount. Please clarify the requirement in Attachment G for three prices per item and provide specific instructions for how the offeror should incorporate these three separate prices into the CSCC tab of the Exhibit 1 spreadsheets.



RESPONSE: The revised price model, posted on December 19, corrected this oversight.  The CSCC now has a column for Category 1, 2 and 3 items.



Comment ID: 401 



Attachment G and RFP Paragraph C.5.7. In which volume/tab does the government expect the Catalog of Commercially-available products and services (CSCC) to be presented? 



RESPONSE:  The CSCC shall be presented as Tab 9 of the Technical Volume without pricing.



G.1 CATALOG OF SERVICES AND COMMERCIAL COMPONENTS (CSCC)



Comment ID: 433 



The instructions for the catalog pricing states, "Category 1 pricing is a 'full service' category with the price reflecting the price for acquisition, maintenance, integration and Triage Level 1 support to ensure functionality." The Government is requesting offerors to propose a Category 1 price for all Hardware augmentation components, optional hardware, and equipment and software. 



RESPONSE:  See the answer to Comment ID 400.



Comment ID: 434



In the price evaluation for the Master Contract, what level of maintenance (regular or enhanced or critical, etc.) should the offeror assume when including maintenance in the price of the items proposed in the catalog? 



RESPONSE:  For Price evaluation purposes only, assume regular.  



G.1.1 BASE PLATFORM HARDWARE AUGMENTATION COMPONENTS 



Comment ID: 422 



Monitors - what dot pitch and resolution is the minimum requirement.



Flat Panels - will the government please clarify the minimum dot pitch requirement for the flat

panels



Re-writeable CD-ROM - Please clarify the minimum requirement for a read/write speed.



RESPONSE:  Offeror’s shall propose products from their commercial catalog that best meet the Government’s needs as stated in the RFP.



Comment ID: 423 



Multimedia speaker systems - Please clarify the frequency response range and minimum wattage.



Removable Storage Device - Please clarify whether this device should be internal/external and the

interface requirement.



RESPONSE:  See answer to comment ID: 422.



ATTACHMENT J DD254



Comment ID: 403 



RFP Section: Attachment J, Department of Defense Contract Security Classification Specification,

DD Form 254 and A.1.26 SECURITY CLASSIFICATION REQUIREMENT. 

Attachment J: The DD Form 254 and Paragraph A.1.26 appear to be inconsistent. DD Form 254

Paragraph 11.c is checked NO "in performing this contract the contractor will receive and generate classified material." Paragraph 13, Security Guidance, states "Generation or production of classified information is not required for performance of this contract." This is in conflict with Paragraph A.1.26 which states "Performance under this contract will involve access to and/or generation of classified information. Please clarify.



RESPONSE: NASA Headquarters is currently the only NASA Installation requiring the DD 254 for the initial delivery order.  However, A.1.26 applies to performance at all NASA Installations, as defined in the contract.  

 

ATTACHMENT K SECURITY SURCHARGES 



Comment ID: 404 

RFP Attachment K. What section of the proposal submission will be incorporated into Attachment

K upon contract award? 



RESPONSE: The proposed percentages and/or dollars associated with security surcharges will be incorporated into the contract as Attachment K.



ATTACHMENT L TRIAGE ASSIGNMENT TABLES



Comment ID: 413 



There appears to be discrepancies between the ODIN "Environment and Support Services Responses" and the RFP Section L Tables. In some instances software appears on the "Environment and Support Services Responses" and not in Section L for the site. In other cases the reverse is true.



For example on page 6 of their response to the Questionnaire, Dryden Flight Research Center lists 5 applications that they consider core/standard. Among these are the MS Office Pro and Symantec Antivirus Software. Table L-2 of the RFP lists DFRC's software. Neither product appears in this table. If the Office Pro is supposed to be made up of its components, the MS Access should be listed.  At the same time DFRC lists many applications in Table L-2 that are not listed in their Support Services Response. Items such as: Adobe Page Maker, Auto CAD, C, C++, Canvas and others are in Table L-2 without mention in the ODIN "Environment and Support Services Responses".



Will the government please clarify these discrepancies and explain which section takes precedence.



RESPONSE: In all instances  of conflict, sections in the RFP proper (section L in this case) take precedence over items found in the Bidder’s Library or elsewhere.



Comment ID: 414 



Attachment L Triage Assignment Tables: This set of tables lists the software currently in use at each Center and the Triage Level for each software package. Could the Government please provide Manufacturer, Version, and Revision level information for the listed products?



RESPONSE: Offeror’s should use the information in the Bidder’s Libraries to the extent possible to determine an appropriate representative offer at the Master Contract level. Details at the level requested in this question will be provided at DOSP time if need be.  



N.1 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS 

 

Comment ID: 378 



RFP Reference: N.1 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS. The referenced paragraph states:

"Contractors shall complete the NSTL certification benchmarks according to the NSTL provided instructions, and enclose the results of NSTL certifications in their initial proposals, delivery order offerings, and technology refreshment offerings. Instructions for NTSL certification found on the world wide web at http://nasa.nstl.com/ states "Initial performance profiling of systems for ODIN proposals will be conducted by NSTL.



Question: The referenced NSTL web site identifies the methodology for determining the performance benchmark score for UNIX desktop configurations to be a weighted average of the CFPRate and the CINTRate95. This rating system assesses the performance of the CPU and its arithmetic unit along with its memory but minimizes the performance associated with the other elements of the system (i.e., disk

storage). The Windows and MAC benchmarks measure application software performance which attempts to more fully account for the performance of the complete system. The performance benchmark for UNIX systems measures different aspects of system performance than is measured by either the Windows or the MAC benchmarks. Given that the government specifications allow for Unix, PC and MAC products for

SE1 and SE2 seats, comparable benchmark measurements are necessary.  In light of the differences in benchmark measurements, how will the government use benchmark data to assess different competing offerings when offeror's propose different operating systems and hardware for the SE1 and SE2 desktop configurations?



RESPONSE: The different platforms (UNIX, PC and MAC) will be evaluated on how they performed relative to their respective benchmark only.  As UNIX, PC and MAC products are valid platform types for the SE1 and SE2 desktop, it is expected that product offerings for each of these will be proposed so that they may be evaluated relative to their prescribed benchmark. 



Comment ID: 421 



It is our understanding that each configuration proposed must be tested by NSTL prior to initial proposal submission regardless if the configuration is as established by NSTL or if the configuration has been tested previously for another bidder. In the interest of time and saving the Government money, a modified approach to this requirement is suggested. Alternatives might include waiting until potential awardees are identified and then having only those configurations tested. Reconsideration is requested. 



RESPONSE: The Government has reconsidered its position.  The instructions at � HYPERLINK http://nasa.nstl.com/ ��http://nasa.nstl.com/� will be modified to allow offerors to submit proposals with a NSTL Performance Profile Ranking determined through the offeror’s execution of the NSTL benchmarks as provided by NSTL with the proviso that the ranking must  be certified by NSTL prior to contract award.  Certification by NSTL prior to proposal submission will remain as an option as well. 



EXHIBIT 6 TECHNOLOGY REFRESHMENT BASELINE 

 

Comment ID: 409 



RFP Exhibit 6. In which volume/tab does the government expect Exhibit 6 data to be presented? 



RESPONSE: This shall be presented as Tab 10 of the Technical Volume.



Comment ID: 419 

According to the RFP, configurations should be based on a Technology Refresh occurring on the date proposals are due. Is our interpretation correct that quantities in the current environment should be "upgraded" to the next level for pricing purposes? 



RESPONSE: The intent of saying that configurations should be based on a Technology Refresh occurring on the date proposals are due is to provide a common cut-off date at which the technology state is established for evaluation purposes.  However, pricing should include technology refreshment of the current environment in accordance with C.7.1.1.

Comment ID: 420 



What effect will "allowances of up to 10% below the offeror's NSTL baseline profile ranking" have on the evaluation of any such proposed configurations?



RESPONSE:  The statement is intended for possible use at Technology Refresh time after contract award, not during the initial proposal phase.  Therefore, it has no effect on the initial evaluation process.  



CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS--COMMERCIAL ITEMS (52.212-4) (MAY 1997) (MODIFIED)



Comment ID: 472 



Our corporation is very interested in the NASA ODIN procurement.  We have followed the procurement for a number of months and are actively working on the proposal.  However, we are unable to meet the current schedule because of:



1.  Problems with the pricing model

2.  NSTL Performance Benchmarks

3.  Magnitude of the pricing proposal effort.



Problems with the pricing model.  The current automated pricing model does not work. Also, there are many data inconsistencies between Attachment Q and the Center seat estimates by year. We believe it will take a significant amount of time for the government to correct these problems, thereby leaving an inadequate amount of time for contractors to complete the model for submission.



NSTL Performance Benchmarks.  NSTL has estimated two weeks to turn around testing to bidders.  This will allow bidders little time, once test results are received, to adjust their product selection and move forward with the bid.



Magnitude of the pricing proposal effort. The pricing submission is massive and requires considerable time to ensure accurate pricing estimates. Our current calculation for the pricing submission is 16,000 pages. Seat product and related services, service bands, seat options, and seat locations must all be considered in determining a complete NTE price estimate. Commercial vendors who are not familiar with pricing in this manner, will require additional time to become familiar with this pricing method.



Therefore, we request an extension of the proposal due date to February 13, 1998 or at least 45 days after the pricing model is complete and fully functional.



RESPONSE:  The due date for the technical and business proposals has been extended to February 2, 1998.   The due date for the price proposal has been extended to February 9, 1998.  In addition, the NSTL requirements have been revised.  See response to Comment ID: 421.

 �A.3.11.3 ELECTRONIC AVAILABILITY OF PRICING EXHIBITS 



Comment ID: 449 � �We definitely prefer that the ODIN price model be posted without color formatting. From a vendor's perspective, we see no advantage to color-coding spreadsheet cells, while eliminating color formatting has many advantages including smaller file size, less time to load and save spreadsheet data, and significantly less time to print and duplicate copies of the price model. Color printing and color copying eleven sets of the ODIN price model (as currently configured) will require more than 200 hours of machine time, severely compressing the time available to complete the actual pricing effort. We believe that it is essential that NASA eliminate color formatting to help reduce the lead time required for printing/reproducing copies of the price model for all of the Centers specified in the solicitation. �

RESPONSE: The revised Price Model was posted on December 19, 1997 with significant format changes.

�A.3.9.1.4 Socio-Economic Policies and Plans (Tab 4) 



Comment ID: 471 �

The referenced paragraph requires that offers that are not small businesses submit a subcontracting plan as part of their Business Proposal. The proposal instructions for the Business Proposal (A.3.10) do not specify �where the subcontracting plan should be placed in the volume. Should this be an Attachment to the Business Proposal?�

RESPONSE:  Yes.

�A.3.12.1 TECHNICAL, BUSINESS, AND PRICE PROPOSAL VOLUMES 

�Comment ID: 470 � �We have estimated that the NASA Price model will require as much as 20,000 pages to print in the format required. Should any future amendments or changes be made, as with most Price models, even the smallest change will have a ripple effect that would require completely reprinting the entire volume. We believe that this model is intended to be dynamic for clarifications, revisions, and running scenarios for the eventual DOSPs. Keeping with the spirit of conservation and the flexibility to accommodate future potential NASA changes, we believe that the hardcopy print requirement is excessively burdensome. We recommend that NASA require electronic spreadsheets only.



RESPONSE:  NASA has limited its requirement to 1 hard copy to be submitted to GSFC.��ATTACHMENT N ODIN PERFORMANCE SPECIFICATIONS 

�Comment ID: 469 �

Our company has been made aware that NSTL has held discussions with NASA which would permit NSTL to release the ODIN benchmark standards to prospective bidders. This will allow bidders the opportunity to perform their own benchmark testing. While we applaud this decision, we are still concerned about the schedule that OEM's have to support in order to meet bid submission by January 16, 1998. NSTL has stated that their benchmark standards will not be available until sometime during the week of the December the 22nd. Additionally, all contractors are required to sign a nondisclosure agreement in order to obtain this benchmark standards. Due to these administrative matters many OEM's will have approximately two weeks to configure all products and compile testing results. It is our request, in light of these circumstances, that NASA consider extending the bid submission date.�

RESPONSE:  NASA has revised the NSTL requirement.  See response to Comment ID: 421.  In addition, the proposal due date has been extended as stated in Amendment 1.

 

EXHIBIT 1 ODIN PRICE MODEL 

Comment ID: 468 � �In response to your solicitation for feedback regarding the use of color in the price model, we are in favor of not using the color in order to significantly reduce the size of the file. In our opinion the advantages of the smaller file size outweigh other possible considerations.��In that same vein, we would like NASA to consider the possibility of eliminating the spacer columns (e.g., f,k,p,u,z, etc) which will also serve to further reduce file size and improve the manageability of working with the price model.��Thanks for you solicitation and consideration of our comments.



RESPONSE:  Formatting changes have been made to the revised Price Model.�

Comment ID: 483



(May also be listed as Comment Number 425, but did not come up in Collector Report) NASA is currently proposing that each ODIN offeror conduct due diligence prior to proposal submittal. We propose an alternative. Let each offeror bid on the Center's business using the updated inventories as currently known; the updated Center inventory is completely adequate for proposal evaluation. Further, we recommend that NASA solicit a price to conduct due diligence from each offeror; then the successful offeror is the only one who actually needs to bear the significant costs of due diligence. This will also reduce the disruption to the Center during due diligence. Due diligence, in commercial practice, is not considered a cost to propose but rather a cost to perform. This approach is very similar to NASA's approach to transition large service contracts where transition costs are solicited as separate costs from the ongoing contract costs. We suggest changing the RFP to indicate that only the apparent successful bidder is to perform due diligence. 



RESPONSE:  The Government’s requirement stands as stated in the RFP.

 

A.1.13  PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE



Comment ID: 489 



 The RFP states that "the period of performance for each delivery order placed against the contract shall not exceed three years...".  It is critical that the contractor know that the delivery orders will be for a specific period of time (especially for the initial delivery order for a Center).  This is critical in order to know over what period to spread non-recurring costs as well as for other related pricing reasons.  In addition, if the government can be more specific in this area it will decrease the NTE prices proposed.  Could this provision be changed to replace "not exceed" with "be"?

 

RESPONSE: The period of performance for the first delivery order will be three years as stated.  No change to the RFP is required.



A.3.10.1.1  Required Submissions

 

Comment ID: 490 



 The response to Question 9 indicates that it is now NASA's intent that each team member provide a minimum of five references.  Concurrently, NASA is deleting the business proposal page limitation.  The response does not address the RFP wording which states that information is to be provided "for those subcontractors/team members who have greater than 5% participation."  Is it NASA's intention that there be at least 5 references for only those team members that exceed the 5% criterion?



Recommendations:

(a) Retain the 5% criterion in order to receive reasonable responses that will be meaningful in the evaluation process (this will avoid excessive information for NASA review).

(b) Limit each contract reference to no more than two pages, an amount adequate to respond to the elements in RFP section A.3.10.1.1(a).  This will improve consistency among offerors and control the amount of information to be evaluated.

(c) Retain a page allocation for the remainder of the Business Proposal of 15 pages, an amount adequate to provide relevant information.

 

RESPONSE:  The requirement is for 5 references for the prime offeror and each team member who has greater than 5% participation.  



G.1  CATALOG OF SERVICES AND COMMERCIAL COMPONENTS  (CSCC)



Comment ID: 481 



 Please clarify the sentence that reads, "For Category 1 and Category 2 products, interoperability assurance and integration of the purchased components..." This vendor is concerned about the Government's acquisition being assumed to be a purchase. Standard commercial practices in this area provide a one-time charge to customers for upgraded equipment or products (as those required in the CSCC). Additional items added to the existing seat are still owned by the Contractor and are removed along with the platform when the customer's seat is refreshed or no longer under the service of the Contractor. The ODIN RFP document suggests the Government will purchase and own these items. This practice presents the Government with potential overpayment (or underpayment) of these items, when commercial practices negate that. Please clarify whether the acquisition(s) described for Catalog items are being purchased by the Government (for both hardware and software) or whether the acquisition and payment to Contractors is following commercial practices which will allow the Government user only the right to use the hardware/software as part of the service provided to the seat. The Government's response to this issue will have significant impact to the vendor community. If the Government intends to purchase items, this vendor will have to make significant changes to our strategic and asset management approach, as well as re-soliciting cost requests we have made of our supporting vendors and teaming partners. 

 

RESPONSE:  See response to Comment ID: 428.



G.1.1  BASE PLATFORM HARDWARE AUGMENTATION COMPONENTS



Comment ID: 482 



 The Government's price model for the items offered in the CSCC evaluates vendors' product class code discounts. The price model requests a product class discount off of Commercial Price List (CPL)/GSA Schedule. The proposed product class discount is used to evaluate these items by establishing a

weighted average discount that reduces the "plug" number for the CSCC (approximately 00 million). The cost to the Government of items in the catalog will represent Category 1 "full service" (or Category 2 and 3). Our concern is that the price for Category 1 will have no relevance to the referenced CPL/GSA individual component prices which are based on a purchase acquisition only. This also applies to Category 2 and 3 prices. In fact, in many cases, the net unit price offered will exceed CPL/GSA pricing, thus the

discount would increase the plug number of the CSCC evaluation. For example, a Category 1 software product price, in addition to the acquisition price, will include costs for technical refreshment for new versions, product installation, help desk support, and training for any major upgrades.  



We recommend that the Government modify the evaluation by multiplying the offered prices by an estimated quantity and not to base the unit prices offered against the GSA or CPL price of each item. A timely response and/or modification to the evaluation methodology described in the cost model is

required to allow vendors adequate adjustments to their internal schedules.



RESPONSE:  Please ignore the reference to GSA/Comm in the CSCC Category 1,2 and 3 column titles.  This will be revised if a future version of the Price Model is released.

 

ATTACHMENT L  TRIAGE ASSIGNMENT TABLES



Comment ID: 477 



 After careful review of software tables L.1 to L.5, this bidder is unable to identify a significant percentage of  the products shown in these tables. Many products are listed with what we assume are product names (e.g., CTS, RAMIS, or SDBDB in Table L.4). As currently presented, we are unable to identify dozens of  products which we will then be unable to include in our offering. 



In order for vendors to propose the comprehensive list of software products identified, we request that these tables be updated to include, at a minimum, fully populated vendor names and product description columns. Specific versions of the desired products are also requested. If the Government is not timely in providing this level of detail, the delay will have significant impact on vendor responses. If the Government is unable to provide this level of detail at this time, we recommend that these items be removed from the price proposal of the master contract and be required in task order proposals when more detailed information can be made available. (27)



RESPONSE:  An answer to this question will be provided as soon as possible.



Price Model (Electronic)



This vendor spent numerous man days trying to understand the evaluation methodology in the Government's price model spreadsheets. As NASA has already stated, new pricing models are to be released. In order to minimize the significant effort to re-evaluate all of the Center and Summary spreadsheets, we request that the Government provide a detailed overview with the new price model, when released, detailing all of the modifications made to the price model. 



RESPONSE:  The basic structure of the Price Model still exists in the revised Price Model.  The majority of the changes involved formatting changes and the correction of formula errors.  In fact, the changes madeto the price model  originated in the questions posed by offerors.

 

Comment ID: 488 



Attachment L lists Software packages by site and Triage level. While the heading indicates that both vendor and software package will be listed, along with a specific point of contact, in most cases we only have the name of a software package. We have had success in identifying a number of the software packages for pricing purposes. Some of the packages we have identified as GOTS, some as shareware, and all of the commonly used COTS packages have been identified. However, there is still a listing of unknown packages. 



The introduction to Attatchment L (".. The Govenment requires the software packages listed below to be supported ...) indicates that all software packages be priced, however your response to comments 358 and 359 ("The Governement does not believe this level of detail is required for purposes of developing a response."), indicates that it may be a requirement only to price a representative set of of software packages for the master contract and the complete price list will be part of the response to each DOSP.



Question: Is it a firm requirement that every software package listed in table L. be priced in the response for the master contract.



Please answer for Level 1 and Level 2.



RESPONSE:  A response to this question will be provided as soon as possible.

 

EXHIBIT 1  ODIN PRICE MODEL



Comment ID: 478 



Each center's fiscal year cost spreadsheet contains columns for the vendor ID number, model number, and vendor descriptions of items proposed. Using the Headquarters spreadsheet as an example, the Government has identified the GP1 and the GP3 as the PC Standard Seat, Entry Level. However, in Paragraph E.2.1.2, a GP1 is a PC/Mac Entry and Paragraph E.2.1.4., the GP3 is a Laptop-Entry. A vendor's proposal to each of these requirements would likely include two totally different model numbers and configurations to meet the requirements of a GP1 or a GP3. The spreadsheet model allows for the vendor ID, model number, and description of only one configuration. Please clarify where offerors are to provide the model numbers and descriptions when multiple, yet unique, items are in the Government's model on the same row. This clarification is needed on a timely basis. This vendor is concerned that to accommodate the multiple descriptions in the above example, the Government may have to provide another revision to the price model spreadsheets. 



A similar situation exists in the spreadsheets for the WEB1, APP1, COMP1, and FILE1 standard services. For these configurations, the performance delivery requirement is different for each configuration. Although the standard for each is "regular," the definition of "regular" varies for each. What description should vendors provide in the single row in the spreadsheet for vendor description?  Please clarify and/or provide modifications to the price model spreadsheets to accommodate areas for offerors to provide descriptive data. This vendor is concerned that to accommodate the concerns identified in the examples above, the Government may have to provide another revision to the price model spreadsheets. Consequently, we request that your response and/or clarifications be provided to the vendor community on a timely basis. 

 

RESPONSE:  A response to this question will be provided as soon as possible.



Comment ID: 479 



 This vendor spent numerous man days trying to understand the evaluation methodology in the Government's price model spreadsheets. As NASA has already stated, new pricing models are to be released. In order to minimize the significant effort to re-evaluate all of the Center and Summary spreadsheets, we request that the Government provide a detailed overview with the new price model, when released, detailing all of the modifications made to the price model. 



RESPONSE:  See response to Comment ID: 477.



N.1  PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS



Comment ID: 491 



 Section N.1 states that "Contractors shall complete the NSTL certification benchmarks according to the NSTL provided instructions and enclose the results of NSTL certifications in their initial proposals...". The NASA/NSTL web page for benchmarking, specifically the one titled "Performance Metrics and Methodologies," states that "Initial performance profiling of systems for ODIN proposals will be conducted by NSTL...After initial proposals are completed, benchmarks will be made available for downloading...for

selfconducted testing..." Please clarify the procedure for completing the initial benchmark runs. If offerors yield control of this critical path proposal preparation process to NSTL, what guarantees do we have that NSTL will service our needs in a timely manner? Any process which involves a third party means that time will be lost shipping and staging. If systems fail, replacement systems will have to be staged and shipped, losing more time. Benchmark failures could force offerors to pull their proposals at the last moment because they have no time to repair. Will an offeror be allowed to work with NSTL to ensure that systems are benchmarked successfully. Is it NASA's intention to restrict proposed platforms to those listed in the

current "performance profile survey results"? Selecting platforms which are already approved is the only sure way to submit a compliant proposal. We urge NASA to reconsider its benchmarking requirements so that offerors are treated evenly. (12)



RESPONSE:  See Comment ID: 421.



 A.1.2.2  NASA (DOSP)



Comment ID: 483 



A.3.9.1.4 Socio-Economic Policies and Plans (Tab 4) 



Comment ID: 471 ��QUESTION: The referenced paragraph requires that offers that are not small businesses submit a subcontracting plan as part of their Business Proposal. The proposal instructions for the Business Proposal (A.3.10) do not specify where the subcontracting plan should be placed in the volume. Should this be an Attachment to the Business Proposal?�

RESPONSE:  Yes.��A.3.12.1 TECHNICAL, BUSINESS, AND PRICE PROPOSAL VOLUMES 

Comment ID: 470 ��QUESTION: We have estimated that the NASA Price model will require as much as 20,000 pages to print in the format required. Should any future amendments or changes be made, as with most Price models, even the smallest change will have a ripple effect that would require completely reprinting the entire �volume. We believe that this model is intended to be dynamic for clarifications, revisions, and running scenarios for the eventual DOSPs. Keeping with the spirit of conservation and the flexibility to accommodate future potential NASA changes, we believe that the hardcopy print requirement �is excessively burdensome. We recommend that NASA require electronic spreadsheets only.�

RESPONSE: Formatting changes have been made to the Price Model.  These changes should eliminate any problems with printing hard copies. However, the Government has revised its requirement.  Only 1 hard copy of the price model is required for submission to GSFC.



Comment ID: 381 



A.1.1(d): "Surcharges will be applied to the seat price for classified security, when ordered in the

delivery order, at the rates specified in the contract." Will the offeror be establishing a single

surcharge rate or multiple rates? Will surcharges be evaluated as part of the offeror’s proposal? Is

the Discounts tab in the vendor.xls file the only place where a security surcharge factor should be

proposed? 



RESPONSE:  Surcharges should be proposed in accordance with company policy.  See response to Comment ID: 404.



Comment ID: 416 



1. Four Enterprises have been defined in the RFP:

1) ASTT - Aeronautics & Space Transportation Technology

2) HEDS - Human Exploration & Development of Space

3) MTPE - Mission to Planet Earth

4) OSS - Office of Space Science



a) Are these the only four Enterprises that might have multiple Centers for purposes of the ODIN

contract?



RESPONSE:  yes.



b) What Centers would be/could be clustered within each Enterprise?



RESPONSE:  ASTT: LeRC, ARC, LaRC, DFRC

	         HEDS: JSC, KSC, MSFC, SSC

	         MTPE: GSFC

	         OSS: JPL (who is not participating in the ODIN contract at this time)



Please note that an “Enterprise” is the same as an Institutional Program Office (IPO).  Also, Headquarters is considered a separate entity and is not considered to be a part of an IPO.



Comment ID: 424 



Please provide an example or other means of clarifying what the Government means by the

following sentence: "The NTE pricing is effective when the total number of aggregate seats at an

ordering location is within the aggregated bands identified in Attachment Q, Aggregate Seat Bands

Per Ordering Entity, regardless of whether the individual seat minimum/maximum quantities are

ordered." (1) 



RESPONSE:  The aggregate minimum and maximum is based upon the total minimum and maximum number of seats identified, regardless of seat type.



A.1.2 DELIVERY ORDER SELECTION PROCESS (DOSP)



Comment ID: 382 



A.1.2.1: Will the GWACS DOSP include a time period for the contractor to perform due

diligence? If not, how does the offeror propose an NTE cost per seat without knowledge of the

current and planned infrastructure environments at any given agency?



RESPONSE:  Yes.



A.1.2.2(d): When outlining the DOSC, NASA identified six criteria in the RFP. The first five were

detailed and explained, but pricing, the last criteria, was not explained. Please provide an

explanation for how the Government will evaluate pricing.



RESPONSE:  Price reasonableness will be evaluated.



A.1.2.2(d)(3) - Service Delivery

The solicitation states that the Contractor shall be required to pay the Government for all NASA

provided facilities. How will this cost be determined? Does it apply against all or part of each

delivery order? What will this facility’s function be? Will contractor personnel be located at these

facilities?



RESPONSE:  This cost will be determined based on utility costs to the Government, and other environmental and space costs as negotiated.  It would apply against each Delivery Order issued to a Contractor where Government facilities were provided.  The function of the facility would be based on the offeror’s proposal.



A.1.2.2(d)(4) - Mission Focus

What requirement will contractors have in providing capital improvements? What will be the nature

of the capital investment? Will these capital investments be paid for by the Government? If so,

how?



RESPONSE:  See 1. CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS-COMMERCIAL ITEMS (52.212-4), paragraph (n).



Comment ID: 411 

RFP A.1.2: Will the contractor be entitled to perform due deligence in event of a unilateral delivery

order? 



RESPONSE:  No.

 

A.1.2.1 GWACS (DOSP) 



Comment ID: 383 

A.1.2.1: Will the GWACS DOSP include a time period for the contractor to perform due

diligence? If not, how does the offeror propose an NTE cost per seat without knowledge of the

current and planned infrastructure environments at any given agency?



See response to Comment ID 411.



A.1.2.2 NASA (DOSP)



Comment ID: 384 



Questions were duplicates of Comment ID: 382

 

A.1.7 TRANSITION BONUS 



Comment ID: 385 

A.1.7 Transition Bonus: How will the Transition Bonus be split between the two contractors? 



RESPONSE:  50/50.



A.1.13 PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 



Comment ID: 386 



A.1.13(b)

The RFP states "The period of performance for each delivery order placed against this contract

shall not exceed three yearsÖ." For pricing purposes it is critical that the contractor be able to

depend on a definitive period for a Delivery Order award for a Center (absent a termination for

convenience or a termination for default). Without this assurance, the contractor would be placed

in an untenable position by being required to commit to a price without knowing the period of

performance. Could this provision be changed to read "The period of performance for the initial

delivery order for each Center, or for a GWAC order, placed against this contract shall be for

three yearsÖ"?



RESPONSE: The period of performance for the first delivery order will be three years as stated.  No change to the RFP is required.



A.1.26 SECURITY CLASSIFICATION REQUIREMENTS (1852.204-75) (SEPT 1989)



Comment ID: 387 

A.1.26 SECURITY CLASSIFICATION REQUIREMENT and Attachment J, Department of

Defense Contract Security Classification Specification, DD Form 254 and A.1.26 SECURITY

CLASSIFICATION REQUIREMENT. A.1.26: The DD Form 254 and Paragraph A.1.26 appear to be inconsistent. DD Form 254 Paragraph 11.c is checked NO "in performing this contract the contractor will receive and generate classified material." Paragraph 13, Security Guidance, states "Generation or production of classified information is not required for performance of this contract." This is in conflict with Paragraph A.1.26 which states "Performance under this contract will involve access to and/or

generation of classified information. Please clarify.



RESPONSE:  See response to Comment ID: 403.

 

A.2.3 OFFEROR REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS COMMERCIAL ITEMS



Comment ID: 426 



The Government has indicated that FAR 52.225-9, Buy American Act/Trade Agreements

Act/Balance of Payments Program, applies to this solicitation. However, it is not the Government's

intention to purchase hardware or software under the resultant contract. Instead, the Government

will be acquiring the outsourcing of its desktop, server, and intra-Center communication assets and

services. As title to equipment will not transfer to the Government under this concept, FAR

52.225-9 is inapplicable to the procurement and should be removed. (3)



RESPONSE:  This clause does apply because the computer software licenses will become a part of the impending contract.



A.3.1.1 OFFEROR'S LIBRARY FOR THIS SOLICITATION



Comment ID: 417 

Many of the identified web sites for the Centers have notes to the effect that they are still "under

construction" or that more information will be provided later. What is the latest date that bidders

can expect this information to be available? 



RESPONSE:  All of the electronic libraries are now available.

 

A.3.4 PROPOSAL PAGE LIMITATIONS/FORMAT



Comment ID: 388 

 



RFP Paragraph A.3.4. Does the Executive Summary’s 3 page limitation count against the overall

80 page limitation of the technical proposal? 



RESPONSE:  No.



A.3.6 PROPOSAL VOLUMES



Comment ID: 389 



RFP Paragraphs A.3.6 and A.3.11.4. Paragraph A.3.6 states that "all proposal volumes are to be

submitted in hard copy format" in addition to CDs for the Technical and Price volumes while

Paragraph A.3.11.4 states that "the offeror shall submit its price proposal on CD(s)." Please clarify

the media in which the Price volume is required to be submitted. 



RESPONSE:  1 hard copy of the Price Model shall be submitted to GSFC.  All other copies submitted to GSFC and the other NASA Centers shall be on CD.



A.3.8.1 GENERAL GUIDELINES AND INSTRUCTIONS IN PREPARING THE

TECHNICAL PROPOSAL

 

Comment ID: 391 

RFP Paragraph A.3.8.1(a). In which volume/tab does the government expect the Cross Reference

Matrix to be presented?



RESPONSE:  This should be included in the beginning of the technical proposal with the table of contents.



RFP Paragraph A.3.8.1(a). Can offerors assume that there is no page limitation associated with

the required Cross Reference Matrix?



RESPONSE:  Correct.



RFP Paragraph A.3.8.1(a). Please explain what is meant by "Responses should reference, by

number, each paragraph in this RFP to the maximum practical extent."



RESPONSE:  The proposal responses should correspond, as closely as possible, to the structure of the RFP.  Each section of the proposal should reference the section of the RFP being responded to.

 

A.3.9.1.4 Socio-Economic Policies and Plans (Tab 4)

 

Comment ID: 392 



RFP Paragraph A.3.9.1.4(a). This paragraph states, "All offerors that are not small businesses

must submit a subcontracting plan as part of the Business Proposal." However, there is no stated

requirement in the Instructions for Business Proposal (A.3.10) section of this RFP. Can offerors

provide this plan as an appendix to the Business Proposal? If not, in which tab does the

government expect the Subcontracting Plan to be delivered? 



RESPONSE:  The subcontracting plan should be an attachment to the business proposal.



A.3.10.1.1 Required Submissions



Comment ID: 393 



RFP Paragraph A.3.10.1.1(c). Are the prime’s subcontractors included in this provision?



RESPONSE:  No.



A.3.10.2 FINANCIAL CAPABILITY (TAB 2 OF THE BUSINESS

PROPOSAL) 

 

Comment ID: 394 



RFP Paragraph A.3.10.2. Can offerors assume that there is no page limitation associated with Tab

2 of the Business Proposal? 



RESPONSE:  Correct.

 

A.3.11.1 REQUIRED PRICE DATA



Comment ID: 395 



A.3.11.1(e): The pricing instructions (at subheading ARC99 through ARC09 Tabs) state, "The

columns entitled QTY are the Government maximum quantities to be ordered and may vary by

fiscal year. The offeror shall not make any changes to this column." Can it be assumed that when

total quantity for standard and optional items in the pricing model is "0", the unit price and total cost

cells will also be "0" when the offeror submits the model to NASA for evaluation? 



RESPONSE:  Yes.



Comment ID: 412 



Section A.3.11.1 (c) of the RFP states that the Platform Inventory Report (PRD) "shall be used by

offerors in preparing their offers and shall be considered accurate for the purposes of preparing the

price model." Please clarify; (1) how this inventory is to be used by offerors; and (2) the

relationship between the PDR inventory, the quantities hard-coded in the pricing model, and the

min/max quantities in Attachment Q. There appear to be many inconsistencies in these three

sources of "quantities" data. Also, if offerors are to use the PDR inventory, are we to ignore the

note at the top of the report stating that the inventory totals exceed the min/max bands because

non-ODIN platforms are included? 



RESPONSE:  The Platform Distribution Report (PDR) provides an estimate on the manner in which NASA’s current inventory, grouped in terms of platform type (i.e. PC, Mac, or UNIX) and processor (e.g. 386, 486, etc.), would be allocated into the ODIN seat types (e.g. GP1, GP2, etc.).  In determining this inventory some centers chose to include their entire inventory while others limited to only those desktops definitely intended to be included under ODIN.   The assumption is that the relative percentages remain roughly same either way.  The PDR is intended to be informational only as an initial estimate of NASA’s current inventory in advance of a detailed inventory to be conducted at DOSP.  The quantities in Attachment Q of the RFP determine the bands for which the NTE prices offered are valid.  The quantities in the pricing model were generated directly from the max figure in Attachment Q spread over the estimated relative percentages of anticipated PC, Macs and Unix systems (as derived from the PDR) and the estimated percentage of the standard and optional service levels.  Thus the total quantity in the price model for any one seat type (e.g. GP1) should equal the max value for that seat type from Attachment Q.

 

A.3.11.3 ELECTRONIC AVAILABILITY OF PRICING EXHIBITS 

 

Comment ID: 380 



The LeRC pricing sheet has a pricing input for FY99 yet the LeRC implementation

plan indicates that the CCNS contract (which provides the desktop services) expires

at the end of FY99, I assume ODIN commencing FY00. Does LeRC plan to phase

over to ODIN in govt. FY99 (i.e. October 1998)? 



RESPONSE: As specified in LeRC’s implementation plan, Lewis’ planned start date for the ODIN Deliver Order is Oct. 1, 1999.  The FY99 tab should be ignored as it should be for any center with a start date of Oct. 1, 1999.



A.3.11.4 STRUCTURE AND CONTENT OF PRICE PROPOSAL 

 

Comment ID: 390

RFP Paragraphs A.3.6 and A.3.11.4. Paragraph A.3.6 states that "all proposal volumes are to be

submitted in hard copy format" in addition to CDs for the Technical and Price volumes while

Paragraph A.3.11.4 states that "the offeror shall submit its price proposal on CD(s)." Please clarify

the media in which the Price volume is required to be submitted. 



RESPONSE:  1 hard copy of the Price Model shall be submitted to GSFC.  All other copies submitted to GSFC and the other NASA Centers shall be on CD.

 

A.4.4 RELATIVE ORDER OF IMPORTANCE FOR MAJOR EVALUATION FACTORS



Comment ID: 396 



A.4.4(b) and A.4.7

What items/prices will be utilized for the Government’s Total Evaluated Price for the initial award of this contract? The RFP states "the proposed NTE prices will be evaluated in accordance with the price model" and "The Government will evaluate the price for all standard and optional services for all Seats/systems." Does this mean that the Total Evaluated Price that the Government will utilize to compare offerors total prices will be the total for all entries/cells for the individual items in the price model?



RESPONSE:  Yes.



ATTACHMENT H SUBCONTRACTING PLAN 



Comment ID: 402 



RFP Attachment H. What section of the proposal submission will be incorporated into Attachment

H upon contract award? 



RESPONSE:  The entire subcontracting plan will be incorporated.



Comment ID: 405 



Attachment P, Price List: What prices will be included in the master contract or CLINs? 



RESPONSE: All of the prices listed in the price model will be included in Attachment P.

 

EXHIBIT 1 ODIN PRICE MODEL 



Comment ID: 406 



Exhibit 1

The NTE prices entered into Exhibit 1 appear to be annual prices. Will annual or monthly prices be

used in the resulting contract? If annual prices will be used for the contract, how will delivery

orders for partial years be handled?



RESPONSE: The NTE prices are monthly prices.  These prices will be extended to yearly prices in a spreadsheet that combines all of the offerors submitting proposals.  Since the offerors will not be required to fillout any data in this spreadsheet and since we can’t create it until the proposals are received we had not planned on releasing this spreadsheet.  However, if the vendors wish to see the spreadsheet, please request in a comment and we will consider releasing the spreadsheet with sample names.



Comment ID: 410 



Pricing Model: Please explain the product class code on the tab "ClassDB" in the pricing model. Is

the discount percent proposed for homogenous to be applied to the heterogeneous price to

calculate a homogenous price per seat?



RESPONSE: Yes, that is correct.



 Please define "infraupgrade" and explain why each Center’s model does not have this category. 



RESPONSE: That is a product class code for infrastructure upgrades which will be performed at a center.  The discount proposed will be applied to one lump sum which is the aggregated estimate of potential infrastructure upgrades.



Please define "Disk" and explain why 30% is already entered into the discount percent column. 



RESPONSE: The word Disk and 30% was in error and has been corrected.



For the offeror’s estimating purposes, please explain the rationale for each of the Program Office’s receipt of an additional discount (i.e. they are ordering significant quantities at each site).



 Does NASA intend for each offeror to add additional product class codes and discounts that are not already included in the model?



RESPONSE: Yes, the ClassDB Tab is available for vendors to enter class codes and associated discounts for items entered within the Catalog of Selected Commercial Components (CSCC).  Each item in the CSCC should have a corresponding class code and discount.  You may have one class code for one or more line items within the CSCC.



Pricing Model: Please provide more detail for the Gross Asset Value column for the MA1 and

MA2 environments. For example, what does the 50,000 for enhanced Moves, Adds and Changes

represent? 



RESPONSE: This is intended to represent the differentiation between enhanced moves adds and changes and regular moves adds and changes.



Is this the total value of the equipment that will need to be moved, added or changed?



RESPONSE: This is the estimation.



How does the offeror know the quantity and type of equipment that is included in the 50,000? The

quantity and age of components will make a significant difference to the offeror when estimating

maintenance percentages. 



RESPONSE: The offeror needs to review the Environment Statement from each center to determine the types and ages of equipment to be covered.  There is presently no way to identify all types by model # and serial # of equipment that might be covered under this concept.



‘Is it correct to assume that the offeror is basing maintenance costs on the Gross Asset Value of hardware?



RESPONSE: This is correct.



Pricing Model: Will individual prices be evaluated, or the total price by environment by Center?

Will the vendor.xls total summary page be evaluated or the individual centers?



RESPONSE: NASA will be evaluating individual prices as well as total price per environment by center.  We will be using both the Individual center spreadsheets as well as the vendor 1 spreadsheet.



Pricing Model, Vendor.xls: The summary sheet includes a row titled "infrastructure upgrades". This

row is linked to the individual center tabs following the summary sheet, and is linked to cell C490.

Cell C490 is not associated with any prices on the individual total center tabs in the summary

spreadsheet. Please explain this discrepancy in linking the infrastructure upgrade costs.   



RESPONSE: This has been corrected, and is now linked to Infrastructure upgrades.



Vendor1.XLS Spreadsheet

In the VENDOR1.XLS spreadsheet, the "Discounts" sheet contains the footnote stated below:

"**This should be a fixed dollar amount to restore the baseline configuration accordance

with Section C.5.5.3."

The entry cell for "Return to Service Surcharge" indicates the footnote noted with the double

asterisk (i.e., "**") applies. It appears that the "Return to Service Surcharge" cell is intended to be

a percentage. Please clarify if the entry for "Return to Service Surcharge" is intended to be a

percentage or "fixed dollar amount" as indicated in the footnote.



RESPONSE: This should be a fixed dollar amount.



Pricing Model: Why do the KSC and LeRC files link to a cell in the JSC spreadsheet for

infrastructure upgrades? This cell does not even exist on the JSC spreadsheet ClassDB page. And,

if the offeror wants to proposed a different infrastructure discount percent for each center, linking

to one spreadsheet would not be appropriate.



RESPONSE: This has been corrected.



Pricing Model: The Government may want to reevaluate its formulas for calculating the CSCC

prices in the summary page of each center. Line 486 is referencing the Discount Amount (column

H) when it appears it should be referencing the GSA/Catalog unit price (column E). Line 487 is

referencing column K (which is empty on the CSCC page) and it appears it should be referencing

the Discount Amount (column H). Please explain.



RESPONSE: The CSCC Tab has been revised so that the evaluation of CSCC within the summary page is now correct.



Pricing Model, Headquarters Center: Upon opening the HQ.xls file, the user was not prompted to

reestablish links. Please clarify that this is correct, as all the other pricing models have required

links to more that one file.



RESPONSE: All individual centers pricing models have been corrected.  A vendor should not receive a message about links to a Min Max File that does not exist.



Pricing Model, LaRC: Please explain the rationale behind the links from the LaRC spreadsheet to

(1) the KSC min/max file and (2) the JSC infrastructure percentage discount. The pricing model

can not find these links, besides the fact that it appears that these links should not be referencing

other centers.



RESPONSE: This has been corrected.



Pricing Model, LaRC: Please confirm/clarify the quantity of 50,000 MAC seats used in FY00 for

GP1 for Langley Research Center. The maximum seat quantity listed in Attachment Q is 500 for

FY00, and 1,800 for each year for the out years.



RESPONSE: This has been corrected.



 Also, please clarify why the offeror is pricing above the maximum quantity for video services. Attachment Q lists a maximum quantity for FY00, GP1 of 500. The pricing model includes a quantity of 800.



RESPONSE: The Maximum for video Services for FY00 is 800 not 500.  The price model is correct as is.



Comment ID: 415 



This spreadsheet contains "Div/0" errors in Column AB of the Unix Standard Seat section (Rows

172-254). Did the Government intend for there to be numerical quantities in those cells? 



RESPONSE: This has been corrected.



Comment ID: 436 



In the price model, the Government vendor spreadsheet totals infrastructure upgrades from each

Center spreadsheet. The Center spreadsheets are blank in the cells referred to. 



RESPONSE: This has been corrected.



However, vendor proposals are evaluated expecting an offered discount to reduce the infrastructure upgrade plug number. What are vendors being asked to cost (and discount) for infrastructure upgrades? Please provide examples, and additional clarification as to what the Government is requesting from

vendors. (13)



RESPONSE: A proposed discount of off potential future upgrades to the infrastructure which is being evaluated against a plug number.

 

Comment ID: 437 

 

For the infrastructure management financial evaluation in price model spreadsheets, there appears to be a conflict with the definition of infrastructure management by describing this as a Government estimate. Typically, vendors would not be expected to change a Government estimate. What is the Government requesting from vendors in the price proposals? (14) 



RESPONSE: A proposed discount of off potential future upgrades to the infrastructure which is being evaluated against a plug number.  It is where ever technology requires the infrastructure to go within the next nine or ten years.



Comment ID: 438 



What is the purpose of the calculation in the spreadsheet entitled "Gross Asset Value" and "% Charge of GAV for Maintenance"? What is being evaluated here? (15) 



RESPONSE: We will have lots of equipment, which will be coming under maintenance during the contract.  One way to price it would be to identify all the equipment up front and let the vendors propose a monthly maintenance price for each item.  Unfortunately this limits the contract if additional equipment is discovered needing maintenance.  The GAV approach assumes that the monthly maintenance price is a function of the asset value.  Hence the spreadsheet identifies the estimated total gross asset value for equipment expected to be brought under ODIN.  The offeror should bid a percentage charge for maintenance, which will be evaluated.  At DOSP, the equipment requiring maintenance and its GAV will be identified, and a fixed maintenance price will be created.  The GAV only applies to equipment not covered as part of a seat.



Comment ID: 439 



What is the difference between the product class discount and the Code Y, R, etc., discount. It

appears that the product class discount is based on the product level (i.e., CLIN) and that the

evaluation considers a site discount depending on which site is being evaluated in the enterprise

("group of sites") discount. Please provide further clarification of the discounts requested. (16) 



RESPONSE:  The codes listed are functional NASA codes and are included to provide an additional discount for aggregating a larger minimum than if only a Center were placing the order.  For instance, if Code M ( HEDS Enterprise) orders as an enterprise during DOSP, than only one vendor will be selected for JSC, KSC, MSFC, and SSC, rather than each of those centers possibly having a separate vendor.



Comment ID: 440 



In the Center spreadsheets, are the product class discounts offered only applicable to the catalog

items? In other words, the seat and service pricing in the spreadsheets is not further discounted by

the product class discount. The existing spreadsheets contain numerous errors, not clearly defining

what items are discounted by what discounts. Please provide clarification. (17)



RESPONSE: Correct.  Class Codes are only applicable to CSCC’s.  The seat and service pricing is not further discounted by class codes.



Comment ID: 441



In order for vendors to present a 50 percent discount in the ClassDB B6 cell, vendors must

represent this discount as "500000000%." Please adjust the formula in the ARCSUM calculation

to reflect a reasonable 2-digit percentage representation and calculation. (18) 



RESPONSE: This has been corrected.



Comment ID: 442 



"ClassDB" Tab: Can additional product class code discounts be added to the spreadsheet tabs?



REPONSE: Yes they can be entered into the ClassDB Tab and then used within the CSCC Tab, but not within any other tabs.



What do the existing product class code discounts represent (e.g., MTPE discount)? How are they

going to relate to the evaluation of the ODIN pricing model? (19)



RESPONSE:  See below. 



Comment ID: 443 



Are we to price the three triage levels in the catalog? If so, where? The "CSCC" tab has no

columns for different triage levels. (20) 



RESPONSE: This has been corrected.



Comment ID: 444 



Outyear Pricing Tabs: Are standard seat bands prices annual prices or monthly prices? 



RESPONSE:  Monthly Prices



There are no formulas in the FY tabs to obtain the extended totals (price times quantity) for the standard seat bands. 



RESPONSE: This has been corrected.



How are those prices to be evaluated; i.e., how many months will be evaluated for each

price; how will the optional seat band prices be evaluated? (21) 



RESPONSE: See previous answer.



Comment ID: 445 



In calculating the total catalog price on the summary tabs of the center spreadsheets, the cell range

of tab CSCC! to 000 is referenced. On that tab (CSCC), the prices are located in column E. Is

this range correct? (22) 



RESPONSE: This has been corrected.



Comment ID: 446 



In calculating the total discount amount on the summary tabs of the Center spreadsheets, the cell

range of tab CSCC! to 000 is referenced. On that tab (CSCC), the discount amounts are located

in column H. Is this range correct? (23) 



RESPONSE:  This has been corrected.



Comment ID: 447 



In the Center spreadsheets in the FY tabs cell, AP2 has "N/W CON" located in them. What does

"N/W CON" represent? (24)



RESPONSE: “N/W CON” stands for Network Connection.  This is simply identifying that a NAD is a Network Connection.



Comment ID: 448 



Will there be a PV factor to apply for the life cycle evaluation? (25)



RESPONSE:  No.



EXHIBIT 2 ODIN PRICE MODEL INSTRUCTIONS 



Comment ID: 407 



Exhibit 2, Pricing Instructions: The instructions indicate that the offeror should provide a yearly

price, by Government fiscal year, for years 1999 through 2009. It is assumed that each

Government fiscal year to be priced begins October 1. Please clarify. 



RESPONSE:  Contract award in June 98 with the DOSP occurring for the first Center during July and August would anticipate performance under the first delivery order to occur Oct. 1, 1998, which is FY 99.



EXHIBIT 3 PLATFORM DISTRIBUTION 



Comment ID: 408 



Exhibit 3: It is assumed that this file (ALL PDR.xls) is representative of NASA’s current

infrastructure, not anticipated orders. If this is a correct statement, please explain the rationale for

having links from the pricing models to Exhibit 3. 

 

RESPONSE:  The Maximum quantities were multiplied by the platform distribution reports (All PDR.xls) which further breaks-outs the maximum numbers by PC, Laptop, Unix and so forth.  Also, see response to Comment ID: 412.



THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS WILL BE ANSWERED THE WEEK OF JANUARY 5, 1998:



E.3.1.15  FILE SERVICES



Comment ID: 486 



Service Description:  Provides access to shared file servers for individuals and/or workgroups.  The Contractor shall restore files from backup at the user’s request by close of next business day.  The amount of server file space allocated per user will be negotiated during DOSP and updated through desktop technology refreshment. 



Q1: Are we to assume for the purpose of establishing NTE pricing for a Seat that the server file space referred to in E.3.1.15, ("The amount of server file space allocated per user will be negotiated during DOSP"), is not included in the Seat price. 



Q2: If the server file space allocated to each user is included in the Seat price then what mechanism should we utilize to estimate server disk space usage requirements for initial NTE pricing given that the actual 

server file space per user will not be determined until DOSP.



 E.3.2.4  STORAGE VOLUME



Comment ID: 487 



Service Description:  Provide server storage space on ODIN provided server.



Q3: What is the relationship between the E.3.1.15 - File Services Table and the E.3.2.4 - Storage Volume Table?












